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ITEM 
Resolution No. 2023-09 Approving the Amended Development Improvements; Subdivision 
Improvements; and Inclusionary Housing Agreement for the Holman Court PD and Major Subdivision. 

BACKGROUND 
• The Holman Court Planned Development and Subdivision was approved by City Council on April 

6, 2021 by Ordinance 2021-03 and contained 14 total units; 12 units at market rate and 2 units of 
inclusionary housing.   

• The Holman Court Development Improvements; Subdivision Improvements; and Inclusionary 
Housing Agreement (SIA) was approved by the City Council with the adoption of Resolution 2021-
23 on July 06, 2021.  This SIA states in paragraph 7.1:  “Developer hereby agrees to construct 
and deed restrict two (2) dwelling units which will be affordable to households earning 80% or less 
of the Area Median Income…” 

• On March 18, 2022, City Council approved Ordinance 2022-05 amending Chapter 16, Article XIII, 
Inclusionary Housing of the Salida Municipal Code. That ordinance updated a number of criteria 
within Article XIII. The updates relevant to this request are: 

o Deed restricted unit requirement increased from 1 out of 8 units to 1 out of 6 units. 
o A broader array of deed restricted price levels could be utilized.  Specifically, for-sale units 

could be offered up to 120% AMI, 140% AMI, and 160% AMI with the average across 
multiple units never going above 140% AMI. 

o Deed restricted units match the same for-sale vs. rental ratio as market rate units. 

REQUEST 
The developer is requesting to modify their SIA to more closely align with the requirements of 
Ordinance 2022-05, rather than the requirements that were in effect at the time of their Planned 
Development and Subdivision approval.   

A Planned Development is a negotiated agreement.  As such, when the Holman Court PD and Major 
Subdivision went through the public hearing process at both Planning Commission and City Council, 
changes were made to the original proposal to increase the provision of inclusionary housing units 
from 100% of the code requirement to 114% of the code requirement.  

The reasons supporting an increase to income levels for for-sale inclusionary housing units were 
detailed by the City during the discussion and subsequent approval of the updated Inclusionary 
Housing Ordinance 2022-05, approved approximately one year ago.  With this proposed SIA 
amendment, staff has evaluated the proposal to determine if it provides parity with what was 
approved in the planned development. The charts below outline (1) the PD Approval, (2) how the PD 
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approval would strictly translate using the updated IH Code requirements, and (3) staff recommended 
modifications to better align with community needs: 

(1) 

 

 
 
 
 
 
(2)  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(3)  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
*  The staff recommended adjustment reduces the maximum AMI of one for-sale unit from 160% to 
140% to provide a better value for our workforce households. In exchange, staff recommends 
reducing the fee-in-lieu to 0.33 from 0.66, which keeps the total IH commitment at 2.33, or 16.67%. 
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Additionally, given the need for rental housing, staff recommends allowing the possibility that the 
Developer could choose to maintain ownership of one or both units and rent them.  If only one unit 
were a rental, the maximum allowable rent would be for a household earning up to 80% AMI and if 
both units are rentals, the maximum rent for the second rental would be up to 100% AMI.  In the 
case of one rental and one for-sale, the maximum AMI would be 80% for the rental and 120% for the 
for-sale unit. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends approval of the Amended Subdivision Improvements and Development 
Improvement Agreement for the Holman Court Subdivision. 

SUGGESTED MOTION 
A council person should make the motion “I move to approve Resolution 2023-09 to approve the 
Amended Development Improvements; Subdivision Improvements; and Inclusionary Housing 
Agreement for the Holman Court PD and Major Subdivision.”  

Attachments: 
• Application Materials 
• Resolution 2023-09 
• Amended SIA for the Holman Court PD and Major Subdivision 
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February 14, 2023 
 
City of Salida Community Development Department 
c/o Kathryn Dunleavy, Planner 
448 E. 1st Street, #112 
Salida, CO 81201 
Sent via e-mail: kathryn.dunleavy@cityofsalida.com   
 
RE: Application Narrative, Limited Impact Review, Holman Court Subdivision 
 
Dear Ms. Dunleavy: 
 

Our client Holman Court, LLC (“Holman”) seeks approval of proposed amendments to the 
Development Improvements; Subdivision Improvements; and Inclusionary Housing Agreement 
recorded in Chaffee County, Colorado on July 9, 2021 at Reception No. 472148 (the 
“Agreement”), and the Restrictive Housing Covenant and Agreement, dated September 29, 2022 
(the “Deed Restriction”).  Specifically, Holman requests that the City of Salida (the “City”) 
approve amendments to the Agreement and the Deed Restriction that: (1) increase the Area Median 
Income (“AMI”) restriction applicable to the two affordable housing units within Holman Court 
Subdivision from 80%, to 120% for one unit and 140% for the other unit, to align with Salida Land 
Use Code § 16-13-60(a); and (2) increase the inclusionary housing unit requirement from 12.5% 
to 16.7% as provided in the Code § 16-13-20.  Applying the 16.7% inclusionary housing 
requirement to the 14 Unit project will increase Holman’s inclusionary housing obligation from 
1.75 to 2.33.  As discussed in prior correspondence, Holman intends to pay the 0.33 fee in lieu as 
an alternative to dedicating a third affordable housing unit.   
 

Increasing the AMI applicable to Holman Court under the Agreement and Restriction is 
necessary and appropriate because the current 80% AMI restriction drastically limits, and may 
eliminate, the pool of potential purchasers that qualify and are able to obtain financing. Increasing 
AMI restriction will more effectively promote the terms, purposes and conditions of the original 
PD Plan and the City’s inclusionary housing goals.  Under the 80% AMI restriction, the maximum 
sale price for an affordable dwelling unit is estimated to be $286,000, and an individual’s annual 
income must be less than $45,000 to qualify.   Generally, an individual making less than $45,000 
per year cannot secure financing necessary to purchase a $286,000 property.  Additionally, 
Holman is likely to lose more than $200,000 on each affordable unit based on the maximum sale 
price and $500,000 in estimated construction costs per unit.  Under the circumstances, the 80% 
AMI restriction conflicts with the stated purpose of the Inclusionary Housing code provisions 
because it is not flexible enough for people that live or work in the City to qualify for affordable 
housing, and it gives little to no incentive for developers to create more affordable housing. 
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To reiterate, Holman respectfully requests that the City approve amending the Agreement and 
the Deed Restriction to increase the AMI restriction applicable to sale prices and income 
qualifications to 120% for one affordable unit and 140% for the other affordable unit, and to 
increase the inclusionary housing requirement to 16.7%. to align with the recent Code 
amendments.  If approved, Holman intends to pay the 0.33 fee in lieu in conjunction with finalizing 
and recording instruments necessary to document the proposed amendments. 

 
Thank you for your consideration. Please do not hesitate to contact me with any questions or 

comments you may have regarding this matter.  
 
 Very truly yours, 
 
 KARP NEU HANLON, P.C. 

  
 Wilton E. Anderson 
 
CC: Client; Nina Williams 
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